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Goddard Memorial Methodist Church is a multi-story structure, located at the corner of Jenny Lind Road and 
Dodson Avenue, that offers a good example of Late Gothic Revival from the early 20th Century Revival 
architectural style. The original sanctuary building is rectangular in plan with a tower/ belfry at the southeast 
corner, designed by Haralson & Nelson, architects in Ft. Smith, with original drawings dated June 18, 1930. 
Builder is unknown, but it is established the sanctuary was constructed in 1930, having a full basement with 
brick walls and extensive cut stone accents. The use of materials on the fac,;ades is expressive of the interior 
spaces of the church. 

ELABORATION OF DESCRIPTION 
The entry fac,;ade, facing Dodson Ave. on the north, rises over 45 ft. above first floor that is set an additional 4 
ft.+ above sidewalk adjoining Dodson Ave. The fac,;ade has stone, decorative buttresses framing the entry doors 
leading into the narthex, as well as the stained glass windows directly above. The stone buttresses are made to 
appear more massive by flanking brick walls with battlements on top. Short wings (for stairs), on east and west 
side of this fac,;ade, each 2-story brick, having stained glass, rectangular windows trimmed with cut-stone, and 
brick buttress with cut-stone cap at outside corners. This north fac,;ade has added interest by two stone buttress 
that project out from brick gable wall, starting at the top, where stone voussoirs, shaped as the hood mold of 
an obtuse-angle arch span the stained glass windows. These buttresses divide this north fac,;ade into three 
coupled stained glass windows, located above 3 pair of wood doors. The buttresses step out in three 
segments, with the topmost segment ascending into a lance-shaped spire, while the bottom segment is 
denoted by a gablet feature. 

The entry doors in pairs are wood stile done in early English style, each having stained glass lights in diamond­
hatch pattern. Above each stone-framed door is stained glass transom light, with wood trefoil patterns, all 
under a segmental stone arch. Between the ached entry doors and the coupled stained glass windows is a in 
cut-stone surface that slopes outward spanning between window surface and hood mold arch over each pair of 
entry doors. Each coupled window, divided by two horizontal mullions and the topmost stain-glass segment, 
just under the stone arch, has the appearance of flamboyant tracery, done in wood. At the roof line, the brick 
gable is capped in stone with a kneeler at the gable springer. 

The exterior stone buttresses express the sanctuary's interior configuration having a nave and nave 
arcade/aisle, featuring similar segmental stone arches. The incredible detailed, artistic drawings for this building 
show the high regard to faithfully render the architectural style both on exterior and interior. The east fac,;ade 
features the buttressed brick stair wing that flanks the north entry, then 60ft.+ of the nave 2-story wall, and 
the highly ornamented, buttressed tower rising 82 ft. from first floor, at southeast corner. Also, along this 
fac,;ade, below the stone belt course at first floor line are the basement windows and basement entry, located at 
base of the tower. 

Windows set in a one-story brick wall provide illumination for the nave arcade/aisle; each window is 
rectangular, stained glass, and the opening trimmed in cut-stone with quoin pattern. The composition shingle 
roof over this slopes up to the second story portion of the nave wall, with 5 sets of stained glass clerestory­
windows, each divided by 2 vertical mullions; each window set has a stone gothic arch, similar to north fac,;ade. 
The arches spring from stone kneelers at tope of brick buttresses that divide the nave's east wall. A stone cap 
occurs at a step back in buttress, above the first story nave arcade's roof. Each clerestory window set flanked 
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by the buttress are set in a brick wall, having the jamb trimmed by a quoin pattern of cut-stone. These 
windows, divided by a horizontal mullion, have the upper portion with a similar appearance of flamboyant 
tracery, done in wood on north fa<;:ade. 

At the south end of this east fa<;:ade is a 6-story tower, whose corners feature highly decorated style brick 
buttresses. The top of the tower's wall has a decorative motif of a brick em battlement with a single crenel. The 
corner buttresses ascend another 8ft., each topped with a stone octagonal "lantern-shaped" spire and finial. 
Beneath the em battlement on each face to this tower is a 2-story tall stained glass window under a stone gothic 
arch. Each window, divided by one vertical mullion and three horizontal mullions, has its upper portion under 
the stone arch with similar appearance of those on front fa<;:ade, including a flamboyant-style tracery pattern. 
The hood mold of the obtuse angle arch spanning each of the stained glass windows springs from two cut-stone 
buttressed forms that project out from tower's brick wall. The buttresses flanking each of four 2-story tall 
windows are highly decorative in style and rises above the em battlements, topped with "lancet-shaped" finial. 
These buttresses extend down a cut-stone belt course, which form the sill of the tall windows, as well as 
serving as the head of a pair of small, narrow rectangular stained glass windows, trimmed with a stone quoin 
pattern. These buttresses step out at each tall window's mid-point where a gablet marks the transition. Beneath 
each of these buttresses is a brick pilaster mass extending down to a ledgement table of cut stone, making first 
floor line and top of basement wall. The brick pilaster is about 1/3 the width of each of the eight brick corner 
buttresses; however, the decorative stone accents of both corner and window balusters occur where there are 
cut-stone belt courses in the tower's brick wall. The overall effect with this combination of balusters provides a 
strong vertical emphasis. 

At the east face of the tower, between the brick pilasters that align with jamb of the 2-story windows (some 33 
ft. above) is the cut-stone hoodmold of an obtuse-angle arch of same style above the front entry doors, 
including the wood door and transom. This provides south entry to the sanctuary, and there is an exterior stair, 
having brick wall with cut-stone banister cap, descending about 8ft. to finish grade, alongside Jenny Lind Road. 
Beneath this brick wall for a landing at the south entry is a lower-level arched opening, having a recessed door 
to the sanctuary basement. An exterior stair descends about 3112 ft. from finish grade to the basement entry 
under a segmental stone arch. This arch is comprised of cut-stone voussoirs springing from cut-stone jambs 
having a quoin pattern. 

The tower projects out l01f2 ft. from the east fa<;:ade of the nave arcade. The lower portion of the north and 
east face of the tower feature narrow, rectangular, stained-glass windows, lined by cut stone in a quoin pattern. 
At the first floor, east face of the tower is an arched entry, framed in cut-stone jambs and voussoir; currently a 
deep-red canvas awning reflects the arch opening, and projects in a semi-circular shape to provide shelter at 
the pair of wood doors. Additionally, at each side of entry, is a octagonal lantern light fixture located at 
springing line of arch. On the tower's north face, first floor is one typical narrow window opening. At the 
second floor level, each tower face has one such window opening at "right" corner, while the third floor has one 
at "left" corner. The tower's "third level" occurs just above eave of nave roof, where a belt-course of cut-stone 
occurs, also becoming the sill for the paired windows beneath the 2-story tall windows. At this course, there is a 
cut stone decorative "crest" inset feature to the brick corner buttresses, for each face of the tower. Another belt 
course occurs above this, that marks the sill height of the tall windows; at mid height to these windows, where 
the gablet is set on the flanking cut-stone buttresses, there is at this corresponding level a cut-stone kneeler set 
into each brick corner buttress. The topmost, cut-stone belt course in the tower occurs at the springing line of 
the arch spanning the tall windows. A cut-stone kneeler is set in the brick corner buttresses, and from there a 
bas-relief cut-stone rib, set in brick, ascends as a spire with a finial whose height comes to the base of the 
stone octagonal "lantern-shaped" spire and finial. 
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The southeast corner of the masonry tower joins with a 3-story building, whose axis lies perpendicular to the 
nave and its east gable end facing Jenny Lind Road, included originally educational/office areas. This building 
actually is the oldest, built in 2 phases of 1922 and 1925; interior renovations of 1966 created uses for adult 
education, music suite, and meeting room with its own small kitchen. The same colored brick is used in this 
and the sanctuary building of 1930; however there is an entirely different genre of architectural style 
represented in the original education wing of the 1920's: reflective of the Modern Movement, a moderne style 
building having minimal elaboration in its fenestration, roof line, etc. This building's ground floor has exterior 
walls of cut-stone, and matches the sanctuary's basement walls exposed above grade; additionally, the 
education building's top of cut-stone wall aligns with top of the stone banister-cap at the landing of the 
sanctuary's "south entry" in the east fac;ade of the tower. This alignment provides an appropriate appearance 
for bringing these two distinct buildings together. The north, east and south fac;ades, fenestrations are such 
that they are regularly aligned and evenly spaced. Windows are metal, double -hung in style, with brick 
rowlock sills. The roof is of compositions shingle and has brick parapet gable ends at east and west walls with 
kneelers, topped by cut-stone coping. A belt course of cut-stone beneath the gable ends aligns with the roof 
gutter along the south wall. The brick parapet along the north fac;ade projects from the southeast corner of the 
tower towards Jenny Lind Rd and aligns with cut-stone kneeler of gable end of this education/office building, 
and has similar stone coping. At the east fac;ade first floor is a segmental stone arch over an entry, having 
English style wood doors with stained glass light, similar to front entry doors. At the southeast corner of this 
education wing is an exterior stairway and covered walkway that provides a connection to a detached 2-story 
brick, flat-roofed Education building, constructed in the 60's, which runs parallel with Jenny Lind, completing 
the length of the block from Dodson Avenue to 'L' Street. 

The south fac;ade of the original 1920's education building is common, with a plain 3-story fenestration, and 
metal gutter at roof-line. At its west end a, 2-story addition constructed in 1996 abuts, and a definite contrast of 
materials occurs, revealing original buff-colored brick against new buff-gray EIFS wall in stucco finish. This 
addition currently has areas for church offices, classrooms, multi-purpose room and kitchen, as well as a porte­
cochere for ground level to handicap-entry. A one-story portion projects south from the 2-story addition, and it 
includes a "pedestrian" porte-cochere. There are two tone, horizontal bands of brick veneer for its one-story 
wall which alternate from buff at the base to 1 ft. wide bands of pewter gray at both sill and head heights of 
the windows. The fascia trim, set back some just above the top band of gray brick is of EIFS stucco finish, has 
triple, corbelled horizontal bas-relief bands at about 2/3rd point of fascia, providing a two-tone appearance and 
some elaboration of the flat, plain roof-line that's trimmed out in bronze finish metal coping. The addition's 
fenestration, clad in color to match cut-stone, has a single transom light above a pair of casement-style 
windows. The porte-cochere for this brick addition has EIFS finish and is comprised of a square area, turned 
45° to the addition's south fac;ade, with two semicircular arches at openings for pedestrian access to a handicap 
entry. 

At the southwest corner of the 2-story 1996 addition, near where church offices are located, a single-story 
arcade constructed with an EIFS stucco finish extends both north towards the 3-story family life center and east 
towards the "pedestrian" porte-cochere. The arcade features semi-circular arches, above which is its parapet 
having triple, corbelled horizontal bas-relief bands, somewhat reminiscent of Art Deco style. At the center of 
each pilaster is a bronze-tone finish metal conductor and downspout, providing an added feature to the arcade's 
fac;ade. At the southwest corner of this arcade (near Bluff Ave. and 'L' St.) the main porte-cochere projects both 
south and west; its construction with EIFS stucco finish includes three semi-circular arches that 
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give drive-through access. Above each arch is a gable end with its gable roof of compositions shingles; thereby, 
four gable roofs intersect at the center of the square area of this structure. At the corners of the porte-cochere, 
at height of the arch apex are the triple, corbelled horizontal bas-relief bands which extend to a point that 
aligns with the arches jambs. 

The south fac;ade of the two-story addition beyond has this same fenestration in its EIFS stucco finish walls as 
in the brick single story portion noted previously; the single transom light over a pair of casement-style windows 
is provided a bas-relief head-molding feature. The walls of buff tone EIFS have multiple intaglio of 3-inch 
horizontal bands at about 3 to 4ft. intervals, with the parapet having bronze finish metal coping. Just below the 
coping is the topmost intaglio where, at regular intervals, it is punctuated by emergency overflow scuppers. 
About 3 ft. below another intaglio creates a horizontal band that runs just above the head-mold of second 
floor's fenestration. About 3ft. below this band, another intaglio intersects about mid-point of window jambs; 
below the window sill level another intaglio generates the lower horizontal band. The roof flashing of the 
single-story portion concludes the exposed portion of the addition's 2-story. 

The family life center, a three-story height 1996 construction with EIFS stucco finish, has the massive area of 
the west fac;ade (facing Bluff Avenue) broken up by 4 pilasters of brick, two being at the corners; additionally 
there is a broad fascia having two horizontal, bas-relief bands. Where these bands intersect each pilaster there 
are decorative elements introduced. At the intersection of the bottom edge of the fascia (about second story 
level) the buff tone brick pilaster is capped by two soldier courses of pewter-gray brick, giving the appearance 
of a capital; directly above this the pilaster changes to EIFS material. At the height of the horizontal bas-relief 
concave-shaped band, an intaglio in circle-pattern occurs on the pilaster's stucco finish; above this another 
intaglio provides a pattern of a gothic arch on the pilaster, whose apex of which is just below the bronze finish 
of the parapet's metal coping. Just beneath the coping is a pewter-gray tone fascia in stucco finish, providing 
an 8" wide horizontal band intersecting with the gothic-arch pattern of each pilaster. On the 3 surfaces of each 
of these buff-tone brick pilasters are two horizontal bands: one at mid-point and one at base, created by a 
pewter-gray tone soldier-course brick. The bottom band corbels and is comprised of a soldier and rowlock 
course, yielding a "column base" appearance. At the wall line, this horizontal band carries through, providing an 
indication of floor line to the family life addition 

The north fac;ade of the family life center, facing Dodson Avenue, also features a 3-story height wall in EIFS 
stucco finish, but has a decorative treatment that differs somewhat from the west fac;ade. The fascia and 
pilaster remain the same, including the pilaster's capital, and intaglio of circle and gothic arch patterns. 
However, the area of wall between pilasters and beneath the fascia is recessed about 1 V2 ft., thereby yielding 
the appearance of a square column at each pilaster. The buff-tone brick "columns" have same contrasting band 
treatment of west fac;ade, including the bottom soldier-rowlock gray brick band that indicates where foundation 
wall ends. 

The east fac;ade of the family life center joins with the single story addition of kitchen/fellowship areas; where the 
3-story fac;ade is exposed, the division of the wall is treated like the west end, in regard to fascia and pilasters, 
with gray brick "capitals" and intaglio of circle and gothic-arch patterns. The mid-point band from the "column" 
(north facing) gray brick soldier course wraps the corner and abuts a fascia, aligning with its triple, corbelled 
horizontal, bas-relief band just beneath the bronze finish metal coping for the north fac;ade single-story parapet 
wall. Between this fascia's coping and corbelled band, punctuating at regular intervals the buff tone stucco finish, 
are emergency overflow scuppers. Similar to the wall treatment of the south fac;ade's single story portion, double­
stacked soldier courses of gray brick contrast with buff tone brick, thereby creating horizontal bands at head and 
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sill height of the fenestration. Just east of the family life addition the north fa<;ade to the addition (facing 
Dodson Ave.) has a segmental arch set in a short segment of a wall constructed with EIFS finish; at the 
springing line the jamb reflects features of the impost, abutment and plinth of a Romanesque arch. East of this 
portion of EIFS finish with arched opening for a recessed entry-way, the north fa<;ade includes brick veneer with 
the similar double-soldier-course bands of gray tone brick contrasting with buff tone brick. A clustered-window 
arrangement includes pairs of casement-style windows flanking 41ights of fixed glazing which match the width 
of a leaf of the casement window; 8-inch wide vertical mullions of gray-tone EIFS finish divide the casement 
from fixed glazing segments. Above these window elements is an 8-inch wide horizontal mullion, above which is 
transom lights, each divided into equal glazing segments to correspond with the glazing segments below. A 
strong visual "cross" theme is thereby introduced into this fa<;ade. Above the upper band of gray tone brick is 
the continuous buff colored fascia having EIFS stucco finish, featuring the typical triple corbelled horizontal bas­
relief banding and bronze finish metal coping at parapet. 

The east end of this single-story 1996-addition's north fa<;ade continues this 2-tone brick wall and EIFS finished 
fascia southward until it abuts with the 2-story north fa<;ade of the chapel addition. Here, where the east end of 
the fa<;ade abuts with the original1930 Sanctuary building with Late Gothic Revival, there is a visible effort to 
blend materials and borrow architectural style elements from old to new. A stained glass window cluster is 
created in a gabled wall, having a buff-gray tone EIFS stucco finish; the fenestration is flanked by buff-tone 
brick pilasters, each with a capstone, and reflecting the gothic-buttressed forms of the 1930 building. The east 
pilaster adjoins and matches the original brick of 1930 sanctuary, while the west pilaster is located at the 
northwest corner of the chapel addition. The chapel addition's parapet wall aligns with the eave of the 
sanctuary roof, and is finished with a combination of EIFS and metal coping resemble the stone coping of the 
sanctuary building; its gable is centered over the window cluster, capped in similar fashion with EIFS and metal 
coping. Arranged somewhat in the style of a Palladian window, two broad vertical mullions separate flanking 
windows from the center's coupled windows, each divided into 3 stacked lights fixed glazing. At about second 
story height, a broad horizontal mullion divides the clustered window; above the flanking windows is a transom 
in the shape of a quarter circle. Above the center glazing is a circular window divided by vertical and horizontal 
mullions that align with the vertical mullion between the coupled window and with the top of the quarter circle 
transom lights; this circular window is subdivided in two by radial muntins. At the broad vertical and horizontal 
mullions, as well as along the jamb, head, and sill is a bas-relief surround-trim for all six window openings, 
including the quarter circle and circle windows. 

The 2-story chapel addition of 1996 abuts with the west fa<;ade of the original sanctuary at a point opposite and 
corresponding to the southeast tower. The sanctuary west fa<;ade is quite similar, without any exposed cut­
stone basement wall, to its east fa<;ade. Set in a one-story brick wall are windows for nave arcade/aisle, each 
of rectangular, stained-glass, and the opening is trimmed in cut-stone with quoin pattern. The composition 
shingle roof over this slopes up to the second story portion of the nave wall, with 5 sets of stained glass 
clerestory-windows, each divided by 2 vertical mullions; each window set has a stone gothic arch, similar to 
north fa<;ade. The arches spring from stone kneelers at top of brick buttresses that divide the nave's east wall. 
A stone cap occurs at a step back in the buttress, above the first story nave arcade's roof. Each clerestory 
window set flanked by the buttress are set in a brick wall, having the jamb trimmed by a quoin pattern of cut­
stone. These windows, divided by a horizontal mullion, have the upper portion with a similar appearance of 
flamboyant tracery, done in wood on the north fa<;ade. 

The original church structure sits amid a campus of five ancillary buildings that are attached to the original 
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structure and three that are not. The 3-story building originally used for education/office areas, attached to the 
south end of the 1930 sanctuary building, predates it. The parking for those few cars of 1930 occurred 
alongside the nearby surrounding streets; now the church campus includes a significant parking lot area 
bounded by Jenny Lind, Bluff Ave., South 'L' and 'M' Streets. Additions added in 1960's and 1990's have filled 
the block bound by Dodson Ave. and South 'L' Street. The exterior fac;ades of additions do not make attempt to 
replicate the rich architectural Late Gothic elements, save perhaps the 2-story fac;ade of the Chapel addition. 
Nonetheless, use of matching color of brick, alignment of coping, and arched openings make their appearance 
harmonize with the fac;ade of the sanctuary. 

Aside from the additions of the church hall and adjacent multi-purpose center and church offices, the original1930 
structure remains in excellent condition. 
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Originally built in 1930 to replace a wooden structure on the same site at corner of Dodson Avenue and Jenny 
Lind, this building was then known as Dodson Avenue Methodist Episcopal Church. The architect was Haralson 
& Nelson - AIA Architect of Ft. Smith, Arkansas; although the builder is unknown, the construction utilized 
native materials. By 1945 it was renamed Goddard Memorial Methodist Church, and now is known as Goddard 
United Methodist Church. The church is being nominated to the National Register of Historic Places with local 
significance under Criterion C, representing an excellent example of late Gothic Revival architectural style in 
its neighborhood of Fort Smith. Additionally, it is being nominated under Criteria Consideration A: 
Religious Properties. 

ELABORATION 
The original site, of what is known today as Goddard United Methodist Church, had a Gothic Revival wood­
framed structure, constructed in 1908. The 39 charter members who established Dodson Avenue Methodist 
Episcopal Church South on July 24, 1907, began with just a vacant lot with trees and grapevines. Many new 
homes at that time were being built on the south side of Ft. Smith, but on the two lots purchased they took 
advantage of the warm weather and shade from a brush arbor they constructed. As fall approached that year, 
they enclosed the arbor, creating a shed for the congregation of 44, covering the cracks with strips on the 
outside, and covering the inside with building paper, and carpeting the ground with sawdust ... ready for 
winter! By the next summer, with 95 members gathering, they took great care to build a white frame building 
for their religious facility, reflecting some of the Late Gothic Revival architectural style. 

The congregation used this structure for 22 years at that location on Dodson Avenue, but then sold it and 
moved the structure to its present location at Central City on Arkansas Hwy. 22. Ft. Smith's history and growth 
had by 1930 dictated a strong preference for masonry construction, with such considerations for fire safety and 
durability against strong storms in this region. However, for a group of men who dreamed big, there was a 
strong desire for their church to provide a strong statement of faith and architectural beauty, and thereby 
fashioned a Gothic sanctuary in the style of no other church in Ft. Smith area. Those of that building committee 
of 1930 included such notables as T.L. Hunt, D.L. Ford, C.L. Barry, Luther Hopkins, Shelton Adair and J.F. 
Oglesby. Although the Great Depression era was hard upon those in this region and gave cause to hesitate 
about the cost, they chose not to eliminate any portion of that original design. Neither the tower nor any of the 
elaborate stained glass windows nor even the pipe organ was to be eliminated. Instead, the congregation took 
on great risk to faithfully usher into reality this rich example in religious building. There were many bake sales 
and dinners served from the basement kitchen of that new sanctuary building, in efforts to raise monies and 
struggle against the odds of meeting the debt payments. 

The original masonry building on the corner of Dodson and Jenny Lind was constructed from a 10-drawing set 
dated June 18, 1930 developed by Haralson & Nelson - AIA Architect of Ft. Smith. Additionally this architectural 
firm provided some 84 pages total of specifications for the general contactor, plumbing and electric wiring 
specification, and heating specification with R.E. Williams listed as engineer. The 5 sheets of building elevations 
in the original drawing set demonstrate the very elaborate, artistic style of drafting, and indicate how much 
detailing it required to reveal the Late Gothic Revival architectural style. It is known that Haralson & Nelson 
were the predecessor to Haralson & Mott- AIA Architect, formed in 1936; also Haralson & Nelson were 
successors in 1919 to A. Klingensmith, a well-known architect in the Ft. Smith region at the turn of the century. 
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By 1930 Haralson & Nelson had their offices in rooms 407-09 of what was then know as Merchants National 
Bank Building (now called "Stephens Building," site of Ft. Smith city offices). Joesph J. Haralson was known by 
Eugene Staton (retired structural engineer, still living), as he worked from 1949 through about 1955 in the 
Haralson & Mott firm. "Joe," (Mr. Haralson's name-preferrence) was most appreciated by Mr. Staton as 
outgoing, gregarious, exuberant and personable, who maintained a positive outlook of the affairs of life. 
Furthermore, "Joe" was the type of person who developed and maintained good business contacts, took on 
meeting with clients and doing the job-site visits, yet was very careful with design quality. During the period of 
design of Dodson Avenue Methodist Episcopal Church, Mr. Ralph Mott was employed by J.J. Haralson, and most 
likely did the production drawings for this project. 

E. Chester Nelson was associated with Mr. Haralson from 1919 thru sometime before 1936; Mr. Nelson became 
an independent architect after that time, while Haralson & Mott began their association, moving their office 
location slightly (rooms 228-29) in Merchants National Bank Building. Mr. Ralph 0. Mott continued with J.J. 
Haralson thru 1955; after "Joe's" death in 1955, Mr. Mott continued the firm Haralson & Mott until 1957 when 
he formed the association known as Mott, Mobley, Horstman. By 1959 Chester Nelson formed his association of 
E. Chester Nelson & Assoc., including James G. Cheyene, Jr. and Robert S. Laser architects, located in room 

421 of Merchants National Bank Building. Other notable, historic buildings that Haralson & Nelson completed 
designs for included three at the University of Arkansas in Fayetteville: Men's Gymnasium (completed 1937), Vol 
Walker Hall (completed 1935), and Chi Omega Chapter House (1941 addition). Other notable structures for this 
architectural firm would include the Johnson County Courthouse (constructed in 1935), Logan County 
Courthouse, South Judicial District (constructed in 1928-1929), and the Belle Point Masonic Lodge, located at 
North 11th St, Ft. Smith, Arkansas (completed in September 1929). 

Dodson Avenue Methodist Episcopal Church had its first service on June 1931, and has operated continuously 
as a religious facility. The excellent example Late Gothic Revival architectural style was built of traditional 
materials, having buff-colored brick and white cut-stone accents. Through the years the church has maintained 
the sanctuary building keeping its significant architectural integrity, for its appearance has changed very little 
from original structure, complete with its highly decorative detailing. Dodson Avenue Methodist Episcopal 
Church was renamed in Oct. 1945 to Goddard Memorial Methodist Church, in honor of Dr. O.E. Goddard. This 
pastor had been assigned to this congregation in 1937 facing a serious debt crisis including eminent foreclosure 
procedures. His leadership brought his personal wisdom and experience to this congregation in the throes of 
the Great Depression; his deeply held convictions on the spiritual approach to their debt problem and their 
willingness to follow brought forth a feeling that God performed a miracle. The debt was somehow refinanced, 
and little by little with inspiration from God and encouragement from Dr. Goddard, positive financial direction 
was regained. The final liquidation of the debt for the original sanctuary building was accomplished by October 
1945. 

The continued growth and expansion of Ft. Smith was reflected at Goddard Memorial, where additions were 
made to accommodate congregation size & needs, including in 1960 additions of the educational/children's 
building and fellowship hall; 1980 added a new children's building, and by 1995 began construction of family life 
center with office area, increased classroom area, and new chapel area. The original building retains the core 
use of what is now know as Goddard United Methodist Church, including the distinctive interior with its nave 
arcade with arches that reflect those of the exterior to the sanctuary (worship center). Its north, east and west 
fac;ades provide the powerful perspective of this rich Late Gothic Revival architectural style. The original tower 
at the southeast corner exalts the building's religious and architectural significance, and makes a 
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statement of its distinctiveness 0 00 not a building to blend in with others or hide among them, this is a place to 
be located and identified easily! The 1930 building abuts on its south end with an even older building, from 
1922-25, that included original classroom/office areas; it's architectural style appears to be in opposition to the 
sanctuary building, but there was effort to blend the brick veneer and the cut-stone tones, so as to create some 
sense of harmony. Likewise those later additions from 1960's, 80's and 1996 have not made any attempt to 
replicate the rich materials or elaborations of the 1930 building, but harmonize with it by use of tones and 
selections of exterior materials, and reflect some elements of elaboration from the original. Additions attached 
to the Sanctuary building appear to be a member of it, not disjointed or alienated elements to this example of 
Late Gothic Revival architecture. 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 
Goddard United Methodist Church has grown in such a manner as to reflect the continued changes in history of 
cultural development in this "hub of the Southwest," Ft. Smith, Arkansas. The architectural integrity of this 
religious facility is significant, and provides a good example of a distinctive architectural style, with a near 
original appearance from 1930. Additionally, the architects were from the same community in which it was built, 
and the draftsmanship care created a rich design on paper that was faithfully reproduced thru brick, stone, 
stained glass, and other durable materials from this locale. This church is being nominated to the National 
Register of Historic Places with local significance under Criterion C, as an excellent example of the Late Gothic 
Revival architectural style, and under Criterion Consideration A: Religious Properties. 
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Lot One A (1-A) in Block Seven (7), Masons Addition of the City of Fort Smith, Arkansas, as shown by 
the recorded plat thereof. 

Boundary Justification: 
These are the original boundaries as deeded to the Dodson Avenue Methodist Episcopal Church. 



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 
EVALUATION/RETURN SHEET 

REQUESTED ACTION: NOMINATION 

PROPERTY 
NAME: 

MULTIPLE 
NAME: 

Dodson Avenue Methodist Episcopal Church 

STATE & COUNTY: ARKANSAS, Sebastian 

DATE RECEIVED: 
DATE OF 16TH DAY: 

1/19/06 
2/18/06 

DATE OF PENDING LIST: 
DATE OF 45TH DAY: 

2/03/06 
3/04/06 

DATE OF WEEKLY LIST: 

REFERENCE NUMBER: 06000082 

REASONS FOR REVIEW: 

APPEAL: N 
OTHER: N 
REQUES : N 

DATA PROBLEM: N 
PDIL: N 
SAMPLE: N 

N 

RETURN 

ABSTRACT/SUMMARY COMMENTS: 

LANDSCAPE: N 
PERIOD: N 
SLR DRAFT: N 

REJECT 

RECOM./CRITERIA ______________ __ 

REVIEWER DISCIPLINE ------------------------
DATE 

LESS THAN 50 YEARS: 
PROGRAM UNAPPROVED: 
NATIONAL: 

------------------
TELEPHONE ____________________ __ 

------------------------
DOCUMENTATION see attached comments Y/N see attached SLR Y/N 

If a nomination is returned to the nominating authority, the 
nomination is no longer under consideration by the NPS. 

N 
N 
N 





















The Department of 

Arkansas 
Heritage 
Mike Huckabee, Governor 
cathie Matthews, Director 

Arkansas Arts Council 

• 
Arkansas Natural Heritage 

Commission 

• 
Delta Cultural Center 

• 
Historic Arkansas Museum 

• 
Mosaic Templars 
Cultural Center 

• 
Old State House Museum 

Arkansas Historic 

December 7, 2005 

Dr. Janet Matthews 
Chief of Registration 
United States Department of the Interior 
National Register of Historic Places 
National Park Service 
8th Floor 
1201 Eye Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20005 

RE: Dodson Avenue Methodist Episcopal Church - Fort Smith, 
Sebastian County, Arkansas 

Dear Dr. Matthews: 

We are enclosing for your review the above-referenced nomination . 
The Arkansas Historic Preservation Program has complied with all 
applicable nominating procedures and notification requirements in the 
nomination process . 

If you need further information, please call Ralph S. Wilcox of my staff 
at (501) 324-9787. Thank you for your cooperation in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Preservation Program cathie Matthews 

1500 Tower Building 

323 Center Street 

Little Rock, AR 72201 

(501) 324-9880 

fax: (501) 324-9184 

tdd: (501) 324-9811 

e-mail: 

info@arkansaspreservation.org 

website: 

www.arkansaspreservation.org 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

State Historic Preservation Officer 

CM:rsw 

Ericlosure 


